203rd meeting

414

23 November 1949

TWO HUNDRED AND THIRD MEETING
Held at Lake Success, New York, on Wednesday, 23 November 1949, at 3 p.m.
Chairman: Mr, E MaunG (Burma).

Consideration at the request of the
Third Committee, of certain articles
of the draft convention for the sup-
pression of the traffic in persons and
of the exploitation of the prostitution
of others (A/C.6/329 and A/C.6/
329/Add.1) (continued)

FEDERAL CLAUSE (concluded)

1. Mr. Renour (Australia) said that, as a re-
sult of the debate at the 202nd meeting, his dele-
gation had agreed with the delegations of Argen-
tina and India, the latter of which was withdraw-
ing its own amendment,! to draft a joint amend-
ment to the article relating to federal or non-
unitary States which had been proposed by the
delegations of the United States and France, and
was included in part II of the Sub-Committee’s
report (A/C.6/1.88). The joint amendment to
that proposed article would alter the text to read
as follows (A/C.6/L.97):

“In the case of a federal State, the following
provisions shall apply:

“(a) In respect of each article of this Conven-
tion whose implementation is considered by the
federal State to be appropriate wholly or partly for
federal action or central government action, the
obligations of federal or central government shall
to this extent be the same as those of Parties which
are non-federal States.

“(b) In respect of each article of this Conven-
tion whose implementation is considered by the
federal State to be wholly or partly within the
jurisdiction of a unit of the federal State (whether
designated as states, provinces or cantons), the
federal Government concerned shall bring this to
the knowledge of the competent authorities of that
unit and will recommend its adoption.”

2. The CuamrMAN considered that, since the
question had been discussed at length at the 202nd
meeting, a vote should be taken immediately on
that amendment, unless there were any urgent
reasons for more extensive debates.

3. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) pointed out that the Committee now
had before it two texts of a federal clause, both
of which had individual characteristics. It would
be impossible to take a vote on those texts imme-
diately, for the Committee first had to decide
whether or not a federal clause was to be included
in the convention. The Committee might take a
negative view on that point, and it was therefore
obvious that such a preliminary vote might have
the desirable effect of simplifying the discussions.

4. Mr. RenNour (Australia) did not object to
the substance of the USSR representative’s views.
At the same time, he felt that the procedure pro-
posed by that representative was neither practical
nor in conformity with the rules of procedure.
The Committee had to take a decision on a con-
crete proposal, and not on an abstract principle.
The joint draft amendment was the only concrete

1 See the summary record of the 202nd meeting, para-
graph 26.

suggestion before the Committee on the subject
of the proposal of the delegations of France and
the United States,

5. Mrs. Bastp (France) suggested that, in the
circumstances, the Committee might be called
upon to answer the question whether it should
vote first on a text or on a principle.

6. The CmAIRMAN stated that the Australian
representative’s views were correct from the pro-
cedural point of view. He therefore proposed that
the Committee should vote on the joint draft
amendment. If that draft were not adopted, the
Committee might vote on the proposal of the
delegations of France and the United States (A/
C.6/L.88, part II).

7. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) considered that such a procedure might
give rise to difficulties, for it was important for
the Committee first to decide upon the question
of principle. If the Committee were to take an
affirmative decision, and any delegation considered
that the federal clause was unnecessary, that dele-
gation might move an amendment to the proposed
clause. He could not see why the Australian rep-
resentative should oppose a procedure which had
often proved useful in the Committee.

8. The CHARMAN upheld his decision first to
put to the vote the amendment proposed by India,
Argentina and Australia.

9. Mrs. Bastip (France) drew the Committee’s
attention to the paradoxical nature of the Chair-
man’s decision. The Third Committee had re-
ferred certain legal problems to the Sixth Com-
mittee. In the case at issue, the Sixth Committee
had to decide upon the conditions in which a
convention providing for certain modifications in
the legislation of the signatory States was to be
applied by States with multiple legislations, such
as a federal State, or the system of the French
Union. It was questionable whether the Sixth
Committee would fulfil its functions of giving
legal advice to the Third Committee if it confined
itself to considering the problem from the point
of view of the classical federal State, and ignored
other State systems the existence of which could
not be denied.

10. It had been alleged that the formula pro-
posed by the delegations of France and the United
States was liable to involve the application of a
colonial clause. The French delegation had already
pointed out that the intention had been to provide
for the case of States, such as France, whose
structure, although comparable to that of federal
States, was different.

11. The joint amendment of India, Argentina and
Australia was illogical, because it deliberately
ignored a concrete aspect of the problem. It was
based upon anti-colonial concepts, and not upon &
wish to conduct a serious and complete study of
the juridical problem raised by the Third Com-
mittee. »

12. The proposal made by France and the United
States might not provide the best possible solution,



23 November 1949

415

203rd meeting

but the problem as a whole was worthy of special
and separate consideration.

13. The French delegation considered that such
a problem should be referred to the International
Law Commission. That body was best qualified to
provide, after consultation with Governments, an
appropriate formula for the effective and universal
application of that kind of convention by all the
signatory States.

14. Mr. Ferrer ViEvra (Argentina) recalled
that he had had an opportunity at the 202nd meet-
ing! to give his delegation’s views on the proposal of
the delegations of France and the United States.
He now wished to raise the question of the com-
petence of the Sixth Committee to discuss the
colonial clause. He pointed out that the question
had given rise to political discussions in the Third
Committee, and that it had been decided to delete
the colonial clause. That decision was final. The
reference of the question to the Sixth Commit-
tee, therefore, only involved the federal clause.
Nevertheless, in the French and United States
proposal reference was made to both the colonial
clause and the federal clause. The Argentine dele-
gation did not consider that the Sixth Committee
was competent to re-insert the colonial clause in
the draft convention, for the Committee was not
competent to revise a decision of substance taken
by the Third Committee.

15. With regard to the joint draft amendment,
the Argentine delegation was concerned about the
extent of the obligations that its country would
undertake in signing the convention, which dealt
with questions that fell within the internal compe-
tence of provinces. The provinces of Argentina
made their own laws, but the existence of a
federal clause would enable the central Govern-
ment of the country to recommend that the
provinces should modify their legislation in ac-
cordance with the provisions of the convention. In
the absence of such a clause, no federal govern-
ment would be able to make such recommenda-
tions; and it would be difficult to achieve the pur-
poses of the convention.

16. Mr. Frrzmaurice (United Kingdom) con-
sidered that the first question to be settled was
that of competence, which had been raised by the
Argentine representative, A perusal of the terms
of reference given to the Sixth Committee (A/
C.6/329) showed that it was called upon to refer
back to the Third Committee approved texts for
the articles submitted to the Sixth Committee for
its consideration, “together with any comments it
deems necessary to submit on any other legal prob-
lem arising from the draft convention™.

17. The representative of France had been right
in saying that the juridical study of the problem
under discussion fell within the competence of
the Sixth Committee, since it arose out of the
federal clause that was included in the Commit-
tee’s terms of reference.

18. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) stated that the United Kingdom rep-
resentative’s interpretation was inadequate, since,
under its terms of reference, the Sixth Commit-
tee was only called upon to deal with juridical
problems which the Third Committee did not con-
sider itself competent to solve. With regard to

'See the summary record of the 202nd meeting, para-
graphs 29 to 31.

the question under discussion, however, the Third
Committee had considered itself to be competent,
since it had decided to delete the colonial clause.
It was useless to question the decision of another
Committee at that stage ; the delegations of France
and the United Kingdom were free to raise the
question in the General Assembly.

19. He supported the point of view of the Argen-
tine delegation.

20. The CHAIRMAN remarked that the Argen-
tine representative had not formally raised the
preliminary question of the Committee’s compe-
tence. In his opinion, the Committee’s terms of
reference covered not only the proposed articles,
but also “any comments it deems necessary to
submit on any other legal problem arising from
the draft convention”. Those terms of reference
were sufficiently wide to include the question
whether or not the colonial clause envisaged in
the French and United States proposal should be
adopted. That question was more juridical than
political in character, so that it was fully within
the competence of the Sixth Committee.

21. Mr. Soro (Chile) thought that the argu-
ments of the Chairman and of the United King-
dom representative rested on the last part of the
Committee’s terms of reference requesting the
Committee to forward “comments”. For the time
being, however, the problem was not one of
comments but of concrete proposals for the draft-
ing of an article of the convention. There was noth-
ing to prevent the Sixth Committee from forward-
ing comments to the Third Committee; the Sixth
Committee, however, could not reverse a decision
of the Third Committee.

22. Mr. Garcia Amapor (Cuba) endorsed the
views of the Argentine and Chilean representa-
tives. He wondered whether the Chairman would
not agree to change his ruling, for it was essential
not to trespass on the competence of the Third
Committee by reversing one of its decisions.

23. He suggested that the Chairman should, by
way of compromise, call for a vote on the question
of principle asked by the USSR representative
to decide whether the draft convention should in-
clude a federal clause.

24. The CrarMAN said that he maintained his
former ruling. Under rule 102 of the rules of pro-
cedure, that ruling could be overruled by the
Committee.

25. Mr. Bartos (Yugoslavia) pointed out that,
under the rules of procedure, any representative
could raise the question of competence, which was
settled by the Committee itself and not by the
Chairman.

26. Mr. Kerno (Assistant Secretary-General in
charge of the Legal Department) said that both
rule 102 dealing with points of order and rule
110 dealing with decisions on competence could
be invoked in the circumstances. Rule 110, how-
ever, dealt only with the competence of the General
Assembly and could not, therefore, be invoked in
that case. Consequently, a decision had to be
taken under rule 102, which laid down that the
Chairman’s ruling on a point of order could be
either overruled or maintained by a vote of the
Committee.

27. Mr. Bartos (Yugoslavia) emphasized that
the issue at stake involved not only the competence



203rd meeting

416

23 November 1949

of the Committees but also that of the General
Assembly regarding the domestic affairs of States.
The amendments before the Committee requested
the General Assembly to take a decision concern-
ing the internal difficulties of some States. The
Yugoslav delegation, however, believed that the
General Assembly was not competent to settle
questions relating to the internal affairs of States.

28. Mr. FErrer VIEYRA (Argentina) made it
clear that he had not asked the Committee to take
a decision on the question of its own competence.
He had merely said in his previous statement that,
in the opinion of the Argentine delegation, the
matter under discussion was not within the compe-
tence of the Sixth Committee.

29. He also believed that the question, put as the
Yugoslav representative had put it, was not well
founded because the competence of the General
Assembly was a matter for the General Assembly
itself, and not for the Committee, to decide.

30. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) felt that the Committee should not
invoke rule 110 but rather rule 8 which, in his
opinion, provided an adequate solution to the prob-
lem. The rule laid down that “Committees shall
not introduce new items on their own initiative”.
As the problem in question had already been
settled, there was no need to reopen discussion
on it.

31. Mr. Bartos (Yugoslavia) reminded the
Committee that he had formally raised the ques-
tion of competence.

32. The CrAIRMAN called for a vote on the fol-
lowing proposal: “The Committee is not compe-
tent to discuss the question of the colonial clause”.

The proposal was adopted by 19 wotes to 15,
with 4 abstentions.

33. Mr. SeirorouLos (Greece) believed that rule
110 dealt mainly with questions which, in general,
were within the competence of the General As-
sembly; the only questions excluded from that
competence were those relating to the internal
affairs of States.

34. The Committee, however, was faced with
a different issue: was the question of the colonial
clause on the agenda of the Committee? As the
United Kingdom representative had pointed out,
it could be held that the Committee was competent,
under its terms of reference, to discuss that ques-
tion.

35. Mr. Mzrencio (Philippines) wondered
whether for the sake of greater certainty it might
not be better to call for a new vote on the issue
just settled. '

36. The CHAIRMAN replied that a decision having
been taken, a fresh vote could not be taken on
the matter unless the representative of the Philip-
pines so requested under rule 112.

37. He then asked the Committee to express an
opinion on the joint amendment of Argentina,
Australia and India.

38 Mr. Lourrr (Egypt) remarked that the
USSR and Cuban representatives had asked that
the Committee should first settle the preliminary
question, namely, whether the convention should
include a federal clause.

39. Mr. Kerno (Assistant Secretary-General in
charge of the ILegal Department) pointed out
that, in some exceptional cases, it might be ad-
visable to vote first on principles. There were
precedents for such procedure, such as Mr, Al-
faro’s decision at the third session of the General
Assembly to refer the question of reparations to
the International Court of Justice.! The Chair-
man could, if he thought it advisable, ask the
Committee to settle a question of principle, It
was for him to decide whether the situation re-
quired such a procedure.

40. Mr. DuynsteEE (Netherlands) said that the
vote which had just been taken had not been
in order. He recalled that there had been only
one proposal before the Committee, to wit, the
Yugoslav proposal that the General Assembly was
not competent to examine the question under dis-
cussion. The vote, however, had been taken on an
entirely different question.

41. Mr. Loutrr (Egypt) believed that, in view
of the statement made by the Assistant Secretary-
General, it might be advisable to call for a vote
on the question of principle. The Egyptian dele-
gation supported the suggestions of the representa-
tives of the USSR and Cuba to that effect.

42, Mr. Garcia Amapor (Cuba) said that it
followed from the indications given by the Assist-
ant Secretary-General that members of the Com-
mittee could alter the situation only by appealing
against the ruling of the Chairman. It was the
established tradition to adopt that course only in
extreme cases, and the Cuban and USSR rep-
resentatives had no intention of doing so. They be-
lieved, however, that their request was fully
logical from the procedural point of view. Members
could ask the Chairman to rule that a vote should
be called on a preliminary question. In the cir-
cumstances, that could only facilitate the discus-
sion since, should the vote be in the negative, the
Committee would be spared the examination of
pointless amendments.

43, The CHAIRMAN said that he had himself
raised the question of the Committee’s competence
to deal with the colonial clause, and the matter
had been clearly settled by a negative vote. That
vote could not be cancelled.

44. The next point to be settled was that raised
by the representative of Yugoslavia, who did not
think the Assembly was competent to discuss the
way in which sovereign States should carry out
their interrational obligations in accordance with
their constitutional structure.

45. Mr. Duvnstee (Netherlands) considered
that priority should have been given to the ques-
tion raised by the representative of Yugoslavia and
that, consequently, the vote taken on the point
raised by the Chairman should be cancelled.

46. Mr. Comen (United States of America)
said that there had been a great deal of confusion
at the time of the vote, and some delegations might
have thought that it had been taken on the Yugo-
slav proposal. Since that proposal was now to be
put to the vote, the previous vote should be can-
celled and erased from the record.

* See Official Records of the third session of the Gen-
eral Assembly, Part I, Sixth Committee, 118th meeting,
pages 582 to 584.



23 November 1949

417

203rd meeting

47. Mr. Garcia Amapor (Cuba) considered
that, on the contrary, the Committee had decided
quite clearly and with full knowledge of the facts
that it was not competent to discuss the colonial
clause. The vote on that point was therefore final.
The Yugoslav proposal raised an entirely differ-
ent issue, that of the Assembly’s competence to
discuss the federal clause.

48. Mr. Ferrer VIEvRA (Argentina) agreed
with the representative of Cuba. Having recog-
nized that it was not competent to discuss the
colonial clause, a question which had already been
settled by the Third Committee and had not there-
fore been submitted to the Sixth Committee, the
latter could quite well proceed to take a decision on
the Yugoslav proposal concerning the Assembly’s
competence to deal with the federal clause.

49. The CrairMAN put the Yugoslav proposal
to the vote, .

The Committee decided, by 24 wotes to 1, with
11 abstentions, that the Gemeral Assembly and
the Sixth Committee were competent to discuss
the problem of the federal clause.

50. Mr. ConeN (United States of America)
wondered whether, after the vote on the colonial
clause, the joint United States and French pro-
posal (A/C.6/L.88, part II) was still before the
Committee, since it contained some elements of the
colonial clause as well as the federal clause.

51. The CHAIRMAN replied that he had the in-
tention to put the proposal to the vote because,
although some delegations considered that it con-
tained some elements of the colonial clause, at least
in their formative stage, others might well argue
that it did not.

52. Mr. ZiavppiN (Pakistan) pointed out that
the vote just taken on the Yugoslav proposal did
not in any way alter the Committee’s decision that
it was not competent to discuss the colonial clause.
That decision remained final.

53. Mr. Loutr1 (Egypt) considered that the re-
sult of the vote concerning the colonial clause was
perfectly clear and that, in consequence, the part
of the French and United States proposal which
concerned the colonial clause was out of order.
Only the part concerning the federal clause should
remain before the Committee.

54. The CHAIRMAN admitted that, in principle,
the Egyptian representative was quite right.
Nevertheless, as it was extremely difficult to de-
cide which parts of the proposal concerned the
colonial clause and which parts the federal clause,
and as there might well be a variety of interpreta-
tions, he thought it would be better to put the
whole proposal to the vote. As for the order of
voting, he thought it would be easier to vote imme-
diately on the joint proposal. In that way the Com-
mittee would, at the same time, decide on the
principle of including a federal clause in the con-
vention, a principle which the delegations of
Cuba, Egypt and the USSR thought should be
settled as a preliminary question.

55. Mr. Garcfa Amapor (Cuba) insisted that
a vote should be taken on the preliminary ques-
tion. The problem of the colonial clause had al-
ready been settled, and so had the point raised
by the Yugoslav delegation. In his opinion, the
question to be settled next was the principle of
the inclusion of a federal clause, which, because

of the shades of meaning some delegations wished
to introduce, might at the same time incorporate
the already rejected colonial clause.

56. Mrs. Bastip (France) considered that the
Committee should. vote on the texts before it and
not on questions of principle.

57. She saw no reason why it should be main-

. tained @ priori that parts of the United States and

French proposal related to the colonial clause.
There was actually no definition of the federal
clause as such. The deletion of the word “territory”
from the text of the proposal would not suffice to
exclude the French Union from the application of
the article because the component parts of the
Union could quite well be designated by the word
“State”. It would be impossible to divide the text
in order to separate the parts concerning the
classical type of federal State from those which
dealt with a constitutional system such as that of
the French Union. The Committee should there-
fore take a decision on the proposal as a whole.

58. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) said that, out of courtesy, he would
refrain from challenging the Chairman’s ruling.
If, however, the Chairman decided not to take a
vote first on the principle of the inclusion of a
federal clause in the convention, his delegation
would reserve the right to request a discussion on
the joint amendment (A/C.6/1..97).

59. Mr. FerreEr VIEYRA (Argentina) said that

the USSR proposal that the question of principle

should be put to the vote first was out of order.

The only thing the USSR delegation could do was

to challenge the Chairman’s ruling to the effect

;hat the joint amendment would be put to the vote
rst.

60. The CHAIRMAN said that, in order to avoid
a discussion on the points raised in the joint
amendment, points which had already been dis-
cussed at length by the Committee, he would agree
to the request made by the representatives of
Cuba, Egypt and the USSR and take a vote on the
question whether the convention should contain a
federal clause.

The Conumittee decided by 13 wotes to 12, with
11 abstentions, in favour of the inclusion of a
federal clause.

61. The CrAIRMAN called for a vote on the joint
amendment submitted by Argentina, Australia and
India (A/C.6/L.97) to the article proposed by the
delegations of France and the United States (A/

C.6/L.88, part 1I). '

62. Mr. Duynstee (Netherlands) requested a
separate vote on the deletion of the words “or
non-unitary”, which appeared in the first sentence
of the proposed article and were omitted from the
joint amendment.

63. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) wished briefly to criticize sub-para-
graph (b) of the joint amendment before it was
put to the vote. There were a number of important
questions which remained unanswered in that text.

64. He asked what was the exact meaning of the
first change proposed in that sub-paragraph. Did
it mean that no article of the convention could be
applied until it had been referred to the authorities
of the provinces for a decision?

30913—14



203rd meeting

418

23 November 1949

65. Should it also be inferred from that sub-
paragraph that it was for the federal State to
allocate fields of competence, to decide which
articles should be applied on a federal basis and
which fell within the exclusive competence of the
provincial authorities? In that latter case, was it
for the federal State to tell the local authorities
what steps they should take to ensure the applica-
tion of the article on their territory?

66. If the application of an article was consid-
ered to be within the jurisdiction of a provincial
unit, would that article remain without effect for
both the federal State and the unit concerned until
that unit had decided that it should apply?

67. It was stipulated in sub-paragraph (b) of
the joint amendment that when the federal State
decided that an article was within the jurisdiction
of the provincial unit, it must bring that to the
knowledge of the competent authorities of that
unit. The need for such a communication did not
seem to arise, because, once the convention had
been promulgated by the federal State, the local
authorities could not remain in ignorance of it,
since they, more than anyone else, were supposed
to know the law and consequently ought, of their
own accord, to adopt the measures required for
the application of the convention in the unit under
their jurisdiction.

68. Furthermore, it was stated in the amendment
that the federal State should recommend to the
provincial authority the adoption of the article
concerned. That might be regarded as a new sys-
temn for the adoption of multilateral conventions, in
which not only the federal State but also each
provincial unit would have to adhere separately to
certain provisions in such conventions. If that
were so, the accepted rule of the reciprocity of
international obligations would be violated, because
the federal States signatories to the convention
would enjoy the privilege of being able to evade
certain of its stipulations, From the point of view
of doctrine, that would imply the creation, side by
side with the body recognized in international law
— the federal State — of semi-bodies in its con-
stituent units. That the various States which made
up a Commonwealth should adhere to a conven-
tion separately was conceivable; but that the same
could hold good for provinces, cantons or terri-
tories would be contrary to the most elementary
concepts of international law.

69. Finally, the text of the joint amendment was
not clear enough; and, above all, it would enable
the federal State to adhere to the convention but
release certain of its constituent units from the
obligation to apply it. The USSR delegation there-
fore had no desire to attempt to improve in any
way the amendment submitted jointly by the
Argentine, Australian and Indian delegations and
would simply vote against it.,

70. Mr. Ferrer VIEYRA (Argentina) felt that it
made little difference in what manner the articles
requiring local action were brought to the know-
ledge of provincial units. The essential thing was
that the federal State should recommend to those
units that they should revise their legislation to
bring it into conformity with the provisions of
such articles. That was the real meaning and the
purpose of sub-paragraph (b) of the amendment.
It was indeed obvious that the federal Government
would not be able to take any action with respect
to such articles and could only transmit them to

the provincial authorities for the requisite revision

- of legislation It would be incorrect, however, to

conclude that the provincial units must adhere
individually to the convention.

71. With respect to the articles whose applica-
tion was a matter for federal action, it was clear
that it was the federal State alone which would
itself assume direct responsibility for them in
adopting the convention ; such was the meaning of
sub-paragraph (a) of the amendment.

72. Mr. MarTar (Lebanon) said that if the fed-
eral clause was adopted by the Committee, either
in the form of the joint amendment or in that of
the original proposal, his delegation would request
the addition of a third sub-paragraph enabling
States parties to the convention to be kept in-
formed of the measures taken by the provincial
units for the purpose of making the various articles
of the convention applicable to their territories.
That paragraph would read as follows:

“Every federal State Party to the present Con-
vention shall, at the request of any State Party to
the Convention, report what action has been taken
by the governments of its constituent States, prov-
inves or cantons to put into effect the provisions
of the present Convention, in conformity with the
recommendations referred to in the preceding sub-
paragraph.”

73. Mr. Mattar said that the United Kingdom
delegation had proposed the insertion of a similar
text in the draft covenant on human rights.

74. The CuarMAN called upon the Committee
to vote on the text submitted by the Argentine,
Australian and Indian delegations (A/C.6/L.97).
In view of the fact that that text might be consid-
ered to embody a number of amendments to the
article on federal or non-unitary States proposed
by the United States and French delegations (A/
C.6/L.88, part II), the Chairman first put to the
vote the first of those amendments, proposing the
deletion, from the first phrase of the words “or
non-unitary”.

That amendment was adopted by 15 wvotes to
10, with 8 abstentions.

75. Mr. ReEnoUF (Australia) observed that opin-
ions had been divided mainly about the first amend-
ment to the joint text of the United States and
France. As that first change had been accepted, he
proposed that the remainder of that text (A/C.6/
1..97) should be put to the vote as a whole.

© Sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the joint Ar-
gentine-Australian-Indian amendment were re-
jected by 17 votes to 11, with § abstentions.

76. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the text of
the article on federal or non-unitary States pro-
posed by the United States and French delegations
(A/C.6/L.88, part II).

That text was rejected by 14 votes to 12, with
8 abstentions.

77. Mr, WENDELEN (Belgium) noted that the
only positive decision which the Committee had
taken in the course of its last three meetings had
been to recognize the necessity of including a fed-
eral clause in the draft convention under discus-
sion. As a result of the rejection of the two
proposed versions of that clause, however, the
Committee was not in a position to submit the
draft of a federal clause to the Third Committee.
Since that was the case, he requested the Rappor-



23 November 1949

419

203rd meeting

teur to lay particular emphasis in his report to the
Third Committee on the fact that the Sixth Com-
mittee had considered that it was necessary to
insert a federal clause in the convention.

CLAUSE ON DOMESTIC LAW (continued)

78. The CmarRMAN invited the Committee to
examine part III of the Sub-Committee’s report
(A/C.6/L.88).

79. Mr. Barrtos (Yugoslavia) pointed out that,
at least as far as the French text of the drait con-
vention was concerned, it was not possible to insert,
~as the Sub-Committee had recommended, the
words “to the extent permitted by domestic law”,
in articles 3, 4 and 7, because it was nowhere
specifically stated what law was intended, whether
that of the accused or that of the place where he
was tried.

80. Mr. Renour (Australia) thought that no
ambiguity was possible in the English text. The
effect of the insertion of the words “to the extent
permitted by domestic law” in draft articles 3 and
4 would be to give prior validity to the provisions
of the domestic law of the States which adhered
to the convention when those provisions conflicted
with those of the articles in question.

81. It must not be forgotten that draft articles 3
and 4 introduced concepts unknown to certain
penal codes which, like Australian legislation, took
no cognizance of acts preparatory to an offence.
The absence of a provision such as that proposed
by the Sub-Committee would prevent Australia
from adhering to the convention, because it was
impossible to ask States to alter the basic structure
of their penal codes in the interests of a convention
dealing with a particular category of offences.

82, The same was true with regard to draft
article 7, which dealt with disqualification from the
exercise of civil rights, a matter which was, in
Australia, a purely constitutional question.

83. The somewhat different formula which the
Sub-Committee recommended for insertion in
draft articles 19 and 20 would not permit parties
to the convention to elude completely the obliga-
tions deriving from those articles in cases where
the provisions of their domestic law were not en-
tirely in consonance with the convention.

84. Mr. Barros (Yugoslavia) thought that if
“domestic law” was intended to mean the law of
the place where the accused was tried, it would be
more advisable so to specify. He therefore pro-
posed that the words “to the extent permitted by
the domestic law of the court trying the offence”
should be substituted for the expression “to the
extent permitted by domestic law”.

85. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics), although he fully shared the Austral-
fan representative’s views on the need for intro-
ducing into some articles of the draft convention
a reservation on the domestic law of the parties
to that convention, wondered whether it was really
necessary to change the wording of the text sub-
mitted by the Third Committee: “subject to the
requirements of domestic law”. There had been no
suggestion that the wording of the new text pro-
posed by the Sub-Committee was more satisfactory
than the old.

8. In Mr. Koretsky’s personal opinion, inter-
national conventions should be couched in stand-

ardized terms, and a terminology sanctified by
use should not be changed except for serious
reasons.

87. Mr. MeLEncio (Philippines) drew attention
to the fact that the chief question asked by the
Third Committee was whether the retention of the
wording “subject to the requirements of domestic
law” would allow the States parties to the con-
vention the liberty to refrain from punishing any
of the acts which were punishable under the terms
of the draft convention. He inquired of the Rap-
porteur of the Sub-Committee whether the Sub-
Committee had thought it had really answered the
question by suggesting an alternative wording
which hardly differed substantially from that of
the Third Committee.

88. Mr. Renour (Australia) explained that the
Third Committee’s wording had been abandoned
because it was open to different interpretations.
The Sub-Committee had concentrated on finding
terms which were free from that drawback and had
therefore suggested two alternative formulae de-
pending on whether it was desired to emphasize
the obligation assumed by the parties to the con-
vention or the procedure by which that obligation
would be fulfilled.

89. He drew Mr. Melencio’s attention to the fact
that the reply to the Third Committee’s question
emerged clearly from the considerations set forth
at length in part III of the Sub-Committee’s
report.

90. In the opinion of Mr. Lourrr (Egypt), the

. problem did not lie in a choice among the various

texts proposed, but in the Third Committee’s re-
quest for information on the legal effects of de-
leting or retaining the clause “subject to the
requirements of domestic law” which figured in
several articles of the draft convention.

91. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) considered that the Sub-Committee had
not answered the questions put by the Third
Committee. The latter had not asked the Sixth
Committee to suggest formulae by which to ex-
press reservations on the domestic law of the sig-
natories to the convention, but to inform the
Third Committee whether the clause “subject to
the requirements of domestic law” might weaken
the convention by leaving States free to refrain
from punishing any of the acts punishable under
the terms of the draft convention, on the grounds
that their domestic law did not provide for the sup-
pression of those acts. In-other words, the Third
Committee had consulted the Sixth Committee on
the advisability of retaining that clause and on its
meaning in certain articles of the draft convention.

92. 1In the opinion of the USSR delegation, it
was the duty of the Sub-Committee to reply to the
Third Committee that the reservations relating to
domestic law were essential, since, owing to the
fact that there neither existed an international
legislative bedy nor an international legal system,
the enforcement of the convention could be en-
sured only through the legislative and judiciary
bodies of the States which were parties to the
convention.

93. Mr. Koretsky considered that, within the
compass of a single convention, it would be a mis-
take to employ different formulae to express
reservations in respect of the domestic law of
signatories, since legal experts entrusted with the



204th meeting

420

24 November 1949

interpretation of that convention might derive,
from the many alternative expressions used, mean-
ings wholly different from those originally in-
tender! by its authors.

94. Mr. CoaeNn (United States of America) ad-
mitted that, in its report, the Sub-Committee had
not confined itself to giving direct answers to the
questions formally put to it by the Third Com-
mittee. The Sub-Committee had expounded all the
considerations raised by a study of the various
aspects of the problem, but it was clearly empow-
ered to do so since, by its resolution of 3 October
1949 (A/C.6/329), the Third Committee had
requested the Sixth Committee to forward any
comments it deemed necessary to submit to the
Third Committee on any other legal problem
arising from the draft convention.

95. Part I1I of the Sub-Committee’s report (A/
C.6/1..88) set forth the problem with great clarity,
stating that the formula uséd in some articles of
the draft convention was ambiguous and suscep-
tible of different interpretations. Some considered
that the formula covered the provisions of both
substance and procedure in the domestic laws of
the States parties to the convention; others con-
sidered that it related only to matters of pro-
cedure. Because of the ambiguity of the formula,
the Sub-Committee had recommended the use of
two different expressions : one, “to the extent per-
mitted by domestic law” when the emphasis was
on the obligation itself; and the other, “in accord-
ance with the conditions laid down by domestic
law”, when only the fulfilment of the obligation
was in question. After thus defining the scope of
the two formulae, the Sub-Committee had pointed
out in which articles of the draft convention it
would be appropriate to embody the first, and in
which the second. Clearly, however, it was for the
Third Cemmittee to decide on the formula it pre-
ferred for each article.

96. The Sub-Committee obviously considered
that the retention of the Third Committee’s word-
ing would leave the States which became parties
to the convention free to refrain from punishing
any of the acts punishable under the terms of the
draft convention unless their domestic law made
provision for the punishment of those acts. Thus,
for instance, it was for the States parties to the
convention to define the “attempts” referred to in
draft article 3 and to lay down the conditions re-
garding their prosecution and punishment.

97. Mr. MeLencro (Philippines) asked, in ref-
erence to the explanations given by the represen-
tative of the United States, whether it might not
be expedient to specify in the text of the Third
Committee’s formula that, in some instances, pro-
visions relating to both the substance and pro-
cedure of national legislation were involved,
whereas other provisions related to legal procedure
only.

98. Mr. Conenx (United States of America)
said that he, personally, preferred the two formulae
worked out by the Sub-Committee after consulta-
tion with legal experts in the Secretariat.

99. Mr. KerNo (Assistant Secretary-General in
charge of the Legal Department) explained that
the formula “subject to the requirements of domes-
tic Jaw” had been inserted in the articles of the
draft convention concerned at the request of the
Social Commission. There had followed, in the
Third Committee, a lively discussion on the legal
meaning and effects of the presence of that clause
in the aforesaid articles. Two conflicting interpre-
tations had been given to it and each had gained
about equal suppert. The Third Committee had
then decided to take the Sixth Committee’s opin-
ion on the legal considerations involved.

100. The Sub-Committee had decided that the
legal effects of the retention or deletion of the
clause could not be stated with certainty because
of its amhiguous nature. The wording certainly
lent itself to the two possible interpretations shown
in the report. The Sub-Committee had therefore
decided that the wording was unsatisfactory and
had proposed that it be replaced by two alternative
formulae, which the Sub-Committee regarded as
more specific. It was for the Third Committee to
define the precise aim it had in view and to approve
accordingly one formula or the other. The respon-
sibility of the Sixth Committee lay in approving
or disapproving the Sub-Committee’s recommenda-
tions in the matter.

101. Mr. Korersky (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) asked the Chairman to request the
Assistant Secretary-General to find out the for-
mula employed in existing international conven-
tions to express the reservation relating to the
requirements of domestic law and the interpreta-
tion which had been given to that wording.

The meeting rose at 6.10 p.m.





